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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS

EASTERN DIVISION

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, )
)

Plaintiff, g No. 04 C 6820
TV ' }
)

GENERAL IRON INDUSTRIES, INC., ) Judge Lefiow

)
Defendant, )

CONSENT DECREE -

WHEREAS, Plaintiff, United States of America, on behalf of the United States
Envitonmental Protection Agency (“EPA™, filed a Complaint in this action on Qctober 22, 2004,
alleging that Defendant General Iron Industrics, Inc., disposed of refii gerant-containing appliances
in a manner which violated Section 608 of the Act, 42 U.8.C.§ 7671g, and is implementing
regulations at 40 C.F.R. Part 82, Suﬁpart P

‘;NHEREAS, the Complaint against Defendant alleges, pursuant lo Section 113(b) of the
Clean Air Act (“CAA” or “the Aet™), 42 US.C. § 7413(b), that up until May 1999, Defendant
knowingly disposed of appliances containing Class | and/or Class I substances used as refrigerant,
causing venting of those substances mto the environment in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 82.154 (a). The
Complaint further alleges that in violation of 40 CF.R.§ 82.156 (), Defeﬁdanl failéd either to
recover the refrigerant from the appliances prior to disposal, or to obtain the required verification

that all remaining refrigerant had been recovered from the appliances and that the appliances no -

longer contained any refrigerant.
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WHERFEAS, the Parties recognize, and the Court by entering this Consent Decree finds, that
this Consent Decree has been negotiated by the Parties in good- faith and will avoid litigation
between the Partics, and that this Consent Decree is fair, reasonable, and in the public interest.

NOW, THEREFORE, with the consent of the Parties, IT IS HEREBY ADJUDGED,

ORDERED, AND DECREED as follows:

1. JURISBICTION AND VENUE

1. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursnant to Section | 13(b) of the Clean
Air Act, 42 U.8.C.§ 7413 (b}, and 28 U.8.C. §§ 1331, 1345 and 1355, and aver the parties.

2. Venue ié proper in this District pursuant to Section 113 (b) of the Clean Air Act, 42
U.S.C.§ 7413 (b), and 28 11.8.C.§§ 1391 (b) and (¢) and 1395 (a), because General Iron’s facility is
located in the Northern District-of linois, and because this is the judicial district in which the events
giving rise to the claim occurred. For purposes of this Decree, or any action to enforce this Decree,
Defendant consents to the Court’s jurisdiction over this Decree or such action and over Defendant,
and consénts to venue in this judicial district.

3. Defendant stipulates that EPA has jurisdiction over the subject matter alleged in the
Complaint and that the Complaint states a ¢laim upon which relief can be granted against Defendant.
pursuant to Section 113(h) of the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C.§ 7413 (b). Defendant waives any
defenses it might have as to juﬁsdiction'and venue, and, without admitting or denying the factual

allegations contained in the Complaint, consents to the terms of this Consent Agreement and Order.
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IL. APPLICABILITY

4. The obligations of this Consent Decree apply to and are binding upon the United
States and upon Defendant, its agents, successors, and assigns.

3. Any transfer of ownership or operation of the Facility to any other person must be
conditioned upon the transferee’s agreement to undertake the obligations required by this Decree,
as provided in a written agrecment between Defendant and the proposed transferee, enforceable by
the United States as third-party heneficiary of such agfee:mcnt. At least 30 days prior to such
transfer, Defendant shall provide a copy of this Consent Decree to the proposed transferee and shall
simultaneously provide written notice of the prospective transfer, together with a copy of the
pmpbsad written agreement, to EPA Region 3, the United States Attorney for the Northem District
of Tllinois, and the United States Department of Justice, in accordance with Section XV of this
Decree (Notices). Any attempt to teansfer ownership or operation of the Facility without complying
with this Paragraph constitutes a violation of this Decree. No transfer of ownership or operation of
the Facility, whether in compliance with this Paragraph or otherwise, shall relieve Defendant of its
obligation to ensure that the terms of the Decree are implemented.

6. Defendant shall provide a copy of this Consent Decree to all officers, employees, and
agents whose dutics might reasonably include compliance with any provision pf this Decree.
Defendant shall further provide the relevant SEP description to any contractor retained to perform
work required under this Consent Decree. Defendant shall condition any such contract ulion

performarnce of the work in conformity with the relevant terms of this Consent Decree.
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7. In any action to enforce this Consent Decree, Defendant shall not raise as a defense

the failure by any of its officers, dircctors, employees, agents, oI contractors to take any actions

necessary to comply with the provisions of this Consent Decree.

I11. DEFINITIONS
8. Terms used in this Consent Decree that are defined in the Act or in repulations
promulgated pursuant to lhc Act shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Actl or such
regulations, unless otherwise provided in this Decree. Whenever the terms set forth below arc used
in this Consent Decree, the following definitions shall apply:
a. “Complaint™ shall mean the Cormplaint filed by the United States in this
action;
| b. “Consent Decree” or “Decree” shall mc;an this Decree and ali appendices
attached hereto;
¢.  -“CAA” means the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 et seq.,
d. “Diay” shall mean a calendar day unless expressly stated to be 2 working day.
In computing any period of time under this Consent Decree, where the last day would fall on
a Saturday, Sunday, or federal holiday, the period shall run until the close of business of the
next working day;
e, “Pefendant” shall mean General Tron Indué.tries, Inc.;
f. “EPA” shall mean the United States Environmental Protection Agency and

* any successor departments or agencies of the United States;
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g “Facility” shall mean Defendant’s recycling facility located at 1909 North

Clifton Avenue in Chicago, Illinois;

h. “Interest” means the rate of interest specified for a money judgment in a civil

case recovered in a district court pursuant to 28 U.5.C. § 1961,

i. “Paragraph” shall mean a portion of this Decree identified by an arabic -
numeral;

j. “Parties” shall mean the United States and Defundant,

k. “Section” shall mean a portion of this Decree identified by a roman numeral;

1. “Srate” shall mean the State of Illinois;

m. “United States' shall mean the United States of America, acting on behalf of

EPA;

n. “Work" means all activities Defendant is required to perform under this

Consent Decree.

IV. CIVIL PENALTY
9. Within 30 days after the Effective Date of this Consent Decree, Defendant shall pay
the sumn of two hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($250,000) as a civil penalty, together with
Interest as defined in paragraph 8h, above runming from.the Effective Date of the Consent Decree.
Payment shﬂl be made by FedWire Electronic Funds Transfer ("EFT™) to the UF.5. Department of
Tustice in accordance with instructions to be provided to Defendant following lodging of the Consent
Decree by the Financial Litigation Unit of the U.S. Attorney’s Office for the Northen District of

flinois. At the time of payment, Defendant shall simultaneously send written notice of payment and
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a copy of any transmittal documentation, which should reference DOJ case number 90-5-2-1-07322
and the United States Attorney’s Office file mumber 200001962, to the United States in accordance
with Section XV of this Decree (Notices).

j0.  Defendant shall not deduct the civil penalty paid under this Section in caloulating its

federal income tax.

V. COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS
11. .It is the express purpose of ihe Parties in entcriné into this Consent Decree to further
the goals of the CAA. By its signature to this Consent Decree, Defendant (.ml'tiﬁes that its Facility
isnow in compliance with the CAA and its impleménting regulations, including, without limitatioln,
Section 608 of the CAA, 42 U.S.C.§ 7671g, and its implementing regulations at 40 C.F.R. Part 82,

Subpart F.

VI. SUPPLEMENTAL ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS
12.  Defendant shall implement the fcﬂlowing Supplemental Environmental Projects
(* SEPa") as described in the following paragraphs:
a. Diesel Engine Vehicle Retrofits - §315,000.00
b. Gas-TPowered Lawnmowey Buy-Back Program - $BQ,OOQ.00
e. GreenGrid Green Roof - $35,000,00
d. Natural Landscaping/R{vwr Restoration - $310,000.00
13.  DicselEn gine_Vehicle Retrofits. By no later than one year after the Effective Date

of this Consent Decree, Defendant shall perform a SEP, expending $315,000 in eligible SEP costs
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for a project retrofitting municipal diesel vehicles within the City of Chicago by installing pollution
control devices to reduce the emissions of particulate matter and hydrocarbons. This SEP is
described in Appendix A.

14, Gas-Powered Lawnmower Buy-Back Program. Within five years ofthe Effective
Date of the Consent Decreé or sooner, Defendant shall perform a SEP which will consist of
participating in a series of gas-powered lawnmower buy-back events. This SEP is described in
Appendix B.

15.  Green Roof SEP. General Iron sha]i install an extensive Grecn Roof System (“Green
Roof”) at a cost of at least $35,000 for its building facility located at 1909 North Clinton, Chicago,
Illinois 60614. This SEP is described in Appendix C.

16. Natural Landscaping/River Restoration SEP. General Iron will restore, cleanup,
rebuild and re-vegetate the river edge of 1is p.ruper[y along the North Branch of the Chicago River
at a cost of $310,000. This SEP is described in Ajapendix D.

17. These SEPs are intended to vield significant environmental or public health benefits
and are beyond the rcquirérnents of existing law. In implementing the SEPs, Defendant shall spend
not less than $750,000 in eligible SEP costs. Except as provided .in paragraph 14 and Appendix B,
¢ligible SEP costs do not include costs associated with developing and implementing the projects
under Section VI of this Decree. Nor do they include Defendant’s overhead, additional employee
time and salary, administrative expenses, legal fees, and contractor oversight. Eligible SEP costs
also do mot include costs which are inconsistent with the SEP descriptions in the attached

appendices.
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18. Defendant is responsible for the satisfactory completion of the SEPg in accordance
with the requirements of this Decree. The Defendant may use contractors and/or consultants in
planning and implementing the SEPs.

19.  With regard to each SEP, Defendant certifies the truth and accuracy of each of the
following:

a. That alt cost information provided to EPA inconnection with EPA’s approval
of tﬁe SEP is complete and accurate and represents a fair estimate of the costs necessary to
implement the SEP; |

b. That, as of the date of this Décree, Defendant is no.t required to perform or
develop the SEP by any federal, state, or lnéal law ot regulation; nor is Defendant required
to perform or develop the SEP by agreement, grant, or as injunctive relief awarded in any
gther action in any forum; |

c. That the SEP is not a project that Defendant was planning or intending to
construet, pé:rfonn, or implement other than in settlement of the claims resolved in this
Decree;

- d That Defendant has not received, and is not negﬁtiating to receive, credit for
the SEP in any other enforcement action; and

e. | That Defendant will not receive any reimbursement for any portion of the SEP
from any other person.

20.  Within 30 days after the completion of each SEP, Defendant shall submit a SEP
Completion Report 1o the United States, in accordance with Section XV of this Consent Decree

(Notices). The SEP Completion Reports shall contain the following information:



L e
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a. A detailed description of the SEP as implcmeﬁted;

b. A deseription of any problems encountered in completing the SEP and the
solutions thereio;

c An itemnized list of all SEP costs;

d. Certification that the SEP has been fully implemented pursuant to the
provisions of this Decree;

e. A description of the environmental and public health benefits resulting from
implementation of the SEP (with a quantification of the benefils and ﬁollutant reducﬁons,
if feasible);

f The SEP Completion Report for the ﬁiesel Retrofit SEI?; shall include:

1) An itemized list containing the following information for each retrofitted
vehicle:

a) Vehicle type

b) Vehicle owner with contact name and phone number

¢) Model yoar

d) Engine manufacturer

e) Engine size (Hp)

f) Estimated annual miles or hours of operation

g) Retrofit type per vehicle (e.g., oxidation catalyst, particulate filter)

h) Retrofit cost per vehicle (itemizing all retrofit costs, including
installaﬁon costs)

{) Estimated fuel usage (gallons per year)
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1} Estimated emissions reductiong for particulate matter, hydrocarbons
and carbon dioxide
k) Copy of invoices for purchase of control technologies

21, EPA may, in its sole discretion, require information in addition to that described in
the preceding Paragraph, in order to determine the adequacy of SEP completion or eligibility of SEP
costs.

22.  Defendant bears the burden of clearly segregating eligible SEP costs from other costs
not eligible for SEP credit. If EPA requests further information concerning the cligibility of SEP
costs, any non-segregable cost evidence that contains both SEP eligible and non-SEP eligibie cost
items shall be disallowed in its entirety.

23.  After receipt of sach SEP Completion Report, the United States shall notify
| Defendant whether or not Defendant has satisfactorily completed the SEP. If the SEP has not been
satisfactdrﬂy completed, or if the amount expended on performance of the SEP is less than the
amount set forth in Paragraph 12, above, Stipulated Penaltics shall be paid in accordance with
paragraph 37.

24. . Disputes conceming the satisfactory performance of the SEPs and the amount of
eligible SEP costs may be resolved under Section X of this Decree (Dispute Resolution). No other
disputes arising under this Section shall be subject to Dispute Resolution.

25.  Each submission required under this Scction shail be signed by an official with
knowledge of the SEP and shall bear the certification language set forth in Paragraph 30, below.

26.  Any public statement, oral or written, in print, film, or other medis, made by

Defendant making reference to any of the SEPs under this Decree shall include the following

10
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language, “This project was undertaken in connection with the settlement of an enforcement action,

{United States v, General Iron Industries, Inc, taken on behalf of the Environmental Protection

- Agency under the Clean Air Act.”

VII. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
27.  Defendant shall submit the foliowing repoﬁs:

a. Within 30 days after tixe end of each semi-annual period (i.e., by January 30
and July 30) until termination of this Decree pursuant to Section XIX, Defendant shall
submit in writing a serni-anmual report for the preceding six months that shall (1) identify any
violation of this Consent Decree and provide an explanation of the violation’s likely cause
and of the remedial steps taken, and/or to be taken, to prevent or minimize such violati;:m;
(2) include a discussion of Defendant’s progress in satisfying its obligations in connection
with the compliance requirements provided for in this Decree (Section V); and (3) include
a detailed report on Defendant’s progress in completing the required SEPs, specified in
Paragraphg 12 through 16, above, including an item:izgtion of the dollar amounts expended.

b. ifDefendant violates any requirement of this Consent Decree, Defendant shall
notify the Uni;cd States of such violation and its likely duration in writing within ten working
days of the day Defendant first becomes aware of the violation, with an explanation of the
violation’s likely cause and of the remedial steps taken, and/or to be taken, to prevent or
minimize such violation. If the cause of a violation cannot be fully explained at the time the
report is due, Defendant shall include a statement to that effect in the report. Defendant shall

investigate to determine the cause of the violation and then shall submit an amendment to

11
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the report, including a full explanation of the cause of the violation, within 30 days of the day
' Defendant becomes aware of the cause of the violation, or when the next semi-annual report

is due, whichever is earlier.
c. ‘Defendant shall submit SEP Completion Reports to the United States, as
specified in paragraph 20, above,
28.  Inthe case of any violation or other event that may pose an immediate threat to the
public health, welfare, or the environment, Defendant sﬂall notify EPA orally or by electronic or
facsimile transmission as soon a.s poasible, but ﬁot later than 24 hours after Defendant ﬁ:_'st knew of,

or should have known of, the violation or event. This pmce&ure is in addition to the requirements

sei forth in the preceding Paragraph.

29.  Allreports shall be submitied to the persons designated in Section XV of this Consent

Decree (Notices).

30. Each report submitted by Defendant under this Scetion shall be signed by an official

of the submitting party and include the following certification:

I certify under penalty of law that I have examined and am familiar
with the information submitted in this document and all attachments
and that this document and its attachments were prepared either by
me personally or ander my direction or supervision in a manner
designed to ensure that qualified and knowledgeable personnel
properly gather and present the information contained therein. I
further certify, based on my personal knowledge or on my inquiry of
those individuals immediately responsible for obtaining the
information, that the information is true, accurate and complete. lam
aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false
information, including the possibility of fines and imprisonment for
knowing and willful submission of a materially false statement.

12



Case 1:04-cv-06820 Document 36  Filed 08/22/2006 . Page 16 of 57

31.  The reporting requirements of this Consent Decree do not relieve Defendant of any
reporting obligations required by the Clean Air Act or implementing r&gulationé, or by any other
federal, state, ot local law, regulation, permit, or other requirement.

32.  Anyinformation provided pursuant to this Consent Decree may be used by the United

States in any proceeding to enforce the provisions of this Consent Decree and as otherwise permitted

by law,

\;’III. STIPULATED PENALTIES

33.  IfDefendant fails to pay the civil penally required to be paid under Section IV (Civil
Penalty) of this Decree when due, Defendant shall paya stipulated penalty of $2,000 per day for each
day that the payment is late. Late payment of the civil pepalty shall be made in accordance with
Section IV, Paragraph 9, above. Stipulated Penaltics shall be paid in accordance with instructions
to be obtained from the Finaneial Litigation Unit of the United States’ Attorney's Office. All
transmittal correspondence shall state that any such payment is for [ate payment of the civil penalty
due under this Decree, or for Stibuléted Penalties for lattla payment, as applicable, and shall include

the identifying information set forth in Paragraph 9, above.

34,  Defendant shall be liable for Stipulated Penalties to the United States for violations
of this Consent Decree as specified below, unless excused under Section IX (Force Majeure), A
violation includes failing to complete any activity required by this Decree, according to all applicable
requirements ofthis Decree and within the specified time schedules established by orapproved under

this Decree.

13
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35. Timely Completion of SEPs

a. The following Stipulated Penalties shall accrue per violation per day for

each violation of the requircments identified in Subparagaph b, below:

violatio

Decree;

Penalty Per Viglation Per Day ~ Period of Noncompliance

5500 Ist through 30th day
51000 31st day and beyond
b. (1) Completion of the installation of the Green Roof within one year of

entry of the Consent Decree.
(2) Completion of the installation of the natural landscaping as déscribed
in Appendix D within 790 days of entry of the Consent Decree.
c. The penalties for failure to timely complete the SEPs may be waived by
written agreement of EPA. |

36.  Reporting Requirements The following Stipulated Penalties shall accrue per

n per day for each violation of the reporting requirements of Section VII of this Consent
Penalty Per Violation Per Day Period of Noncompliance
$125 1st through 14th day
$250 15th through 30th day
$750 ‘ 31 st day and beyond

Ifthe report is submitted late, then Stipulated Penalties began to accrue immediately. If Defendant

in good

faith timely submits a report required by Section VII of the Consent Decree and EPA

determines that a component of the report is deficient, EPA will provide notice in writing of the

deficiency and allow Defendant 14 days to correct the deficiency. In this circumstance, Stipulated

Penalties will not begin to accrue until the expiration of this 14-day period.

14
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37. EP Compl
a. If Defendant fails to satisfactorily complete the Diesel Retrofit SEP,
Defendant shall pay a stipulated penalty of $345,000 less the amount spent to successfully
retrofit vehicles in accordance with Appendix A. If defendant satisfactorily completes the
Diescl Retrofit SEP but expends less than $315,000, then Defendant shall pay a stipulated
penalty of $315,000 less the amount spent to successfully retrofit vchicles in accordance with
Appendix A.
b, If Defendant fails to satisfactorily complete the Green Roof SEP, Defendant
- shall pay a stipulated penalty of $35,000. 1f Defendant satisfactorily completes the Green
Roof SEP, but spends less than $35,000, then Defendant shall pay a stipulated penalty equal
. to the difference between $35,000 and the amount of eligible SEP costs incurred. |
c. If Defendant fails to satisfactorily complete the Natural IJEJidscaping/Rivar
Restoration SEP, Defendant shall pay a stipulated penalty of $310,000. If Defendant
satisfactorily completes this SEP, but spends less than $310,000, then Defendant shall pay
astipulated penalty equal to the difference between $310,000 and the amount of eligible SEP

costs incurred.

d. If Defendani fails to satisfactorily complete the Gas-Powered Lawnmower
Buy-Back SEP,' Defendant shall pay a stipulated penr;llty gqual to the _difference between
$90,000 and the combined amount of eligible cash-worth equivalent SEP credits eamed by
the Defendant for this SEP and SEP credit for out-of-pocket expenses related to the

lawnmower buy-back events.

L3
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€. | Stipulated penalties under this paragraph are due without demand within 30
days after the required completion date for each SEP. If Defendant rcasonably believes that
it has spent the required amount of money ona SEF, but EFA determines stipulated penalties
are due becauses some of the claimed expenses are not eligible for SEP credit, the Stipulated
Penalties are due 30 days after Defendant receives the United States’ written demand.

38.  Defendant shall pay any Stipulated Penalty within 30 days of receiving the United
States” written demand, except for Stipulated Penalties payable under Paragraph 37, above, which
are payable upon accrual. |

39, The United States rna.y, in the unreviewable exercise of its discretion, reduce orwaive
Stipulated Penalties otherwise due it under this Consent Decrse.

40. Exccﬁt as pro‘vided in Paragraph 37, above, and notwithstanding the date of any
demand for such penalties pursuant to Paragraph 38, above, Stipulated Penalties shall begin to acerue
on the day after performance is due or on the day a violation occurs (as set forth in paragraphs 33 -
37(d)), whichever is applicable, and shall continue to acctue until performance is satisfactorily
completed or until the violation ceases. Stipulated Penalties shall simultancously accrue for separate
violations of this Consént Drecree. |

41.  Stipulated Penaltics shall continue to accrue as provided in thi; Section during any
Dispute Resolution, with Interest on accrued penaltics payable and calculated at the rate established
by the Secretary of the Treasury, pursuant 1o 28 U.S.C. § 1961, but need not be paid until the

following:

a, If the dispute is resolved by agreement or by a decision of EPA that is not

appealed to the Court, Defendant shall pay accrued penalties determined to be owing,

16
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together with Intercst, ;to the United States within 30 days of the effective date of the

agreement or the receipt of EPA’s decision ot order;

b. T the dispute is appealed to the Court and the United States prevails in whole
or in patt, Def‘enﬂant shall pay all accrued penalties determined by the Court to be owing,
toge't.her with Interest, within 60 days of receiving the Court’s decision or order, except as
provided in Subparagraph ¢, below;

c. If any Party appeals the District Court’s decision, Defendant shall pay all
accrued penalties determined to be.uwing, together with Interest, within 15 days of receiving
the final appellate court decision. (This section does not require the Defendant to pay
penaltiés {o the extent that it prevails in the dispute.)

42, Defendant shall pay Stipulated Penalties for violations occurring between the dateof
lodging and the Effe.ctive Date of this Consent Decree within 30 days of the Effective Date of this
Decree. .

43.  Defendant shall, as directed by the Uﬁited States, pay Stipulated Penalties owing to
the United States in accordance with instructions which Defendant will obtain from the Financial
Litigation Unit of the United States Attorney’s Office.

44,  Defendant shall not deduct Stipulated ﬁenaltics paid under this Section in calculating
its federal income tax.

45. . If Defendant fuils to pay Stipulated Penalties according to the terms of this Consent

Decree, the United States shall be entitled to collect Interest on such penalties, as provided forin 23

U.B.C. §1961.

17
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46.  Failure by the United States to demand stipulated penalties shall have no effect nﬁ
the aceral of such penalties..

47.  Nothing herein shall precluds the simultaneous accrual of penalties for separate
violations of this Consent Decree.

48.  Thestipulated penaltics herein shall be in addition to, and shall in no way limit, other
remedies or sanctions available tn:;u the United States by reason of Defendant's failure to comply with
the requirements :uf this Decree and the Clean Air Act. |

49, Subject to the‘ provisions. of Section XII of this Consent Decree (Effect of
Settlement/Reservation of Rights), fhc Stipulated Penalties provided for in this Consent Decree shall
be in addition to any other rights, remedies, or sanctions available fo the United States for

Defendant’s violation of this Consent Decree or applicable law.

IX. FORCE MAJEURE

50.  A“force majeure event” is any event beyond the control of Defendant, its contractors,
or any entity controlled by Defendant that delays the perfarmanée of any obligation under this
Consent Decree despite Defendant’s best ¢fforts to fulfill the obligation. “Bcét efforts” includes
anticipating any 'potantial force majeure event and addressing the effects of any such event (a) as it
is occurring and (b) after it has occurred, to prevent or minimize any resulting delay to the greatest
extent possible. “Force Majeure” does not include Defendant’s financial inability to perform any
obligation under this Consent Decree.

51.  Defendant shall provide notice orally or by electronic or facsimile transmission as

soon as possible to EPA at the addresses provided in paragraph 70, but not later than 72 hours after
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the time Defendant first knew of, or by the exercise of best efforts, should have known of, a claimed
force majeurs event. Defendant shall also provide written notice, as provided in Section XV of this
Consent Decree (Notices), within seven (7) days of the time Defendant first kmew of, or by the

| exercise of best efforts, should have known of, the event. The notice shatl state the anticipated
duration of any delay; its cause(s); Defendant’s past and proposed actions to prevent or minimize
any delay; a schedule for carrying out those actibns; and Defendant’s rationale for attributing any
delay to a force majeure event. Failure to give such notice shall preclude Defendant from asserting
any claim of force majeure. Defendant shall be deemed to kniow of any circumstance of which
Defendant, its contractors, or any enfity controlled by Defendant knew or, through best efforts,
should have known.

52.  Ifthe United States agrees that a force majeure event has occurred, the United States
may agree to extend the time for Defendant to perform the affected requirements for the time
neccssafy to complete those obligations. An extension of time to perform the obligations affected
by a force majeure event shall not, by itself, extend the time to perform any other obligation.

§3.  Ifthe United States does not agree that a force majeure event has occurred, or does
not agree to the extension of time sought by Defendant, the United States’ position shall be binding,
unless Defendant invokes Dispute Resolution under Section X of this Consent Degree, Inany such
dispute, Defendant bears the burden .of proving, by a preponderance of the evidence, that each
claimed force majeure event is a force majeure event; that Defenciant gave the notice required by
Paragraph 51; that the force majeure event caused any delay Defendant claims was attributable to
thﬁt event; and that D;fendant exercised best efforts to prevent or minimize any delay caused by the

event.
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X. DISPUTE RESOLUTION
| 54, _Unless otherwise e:ﬁpresaly provided for in this Consent Dccree, the dispute resolution
procedures of this Section shall be the exclusive mechanism to resolve disputes arising under or with
respect to this Consent Decree. However, such procedures shall not apply to actions by the Tnited

States to enforce obligations of the Defendant that have not been disputed in accordance with this

Scction,

55.  Informal Dispute Resolution, Any dispute reviewable under this Consent Decree
shall first be the subject of informal negotiations. The Iperiod of informal negotiations shall not
exceed 30 days from the time Defendant sends the United States a written Notice of Dispute in
accordance with Section XV of this Consent Decree (Notices), unless that period is modified by
written ag,rem"nenL Such Notice of Dispute shall state clearly the matter in dispute. If the Parties
cannot resolve a dispute by informal negotiations, then the position advanced by thé United States
shall be considered binding unless, within 20 days after the conclusion of the informal negotiation
period, Defendant invokes formal dispute resolution procedures as set forth below. |

56.  Formal Dispute Resolution. Defendant shall invoke foﬁnal dispute resolution
procedures, within the time period provided in the precediﬁg Paragraph, by filing with the Court and

serving on the United States, in accordance with Section XV of this Consent Decree (Noticcs), &

" motion requesling judicial resolution of the dispute. The motion shall contain a written statement

of Defendant’s position on the matter in dispute, including any supporting factual data, analysis,
opinion, or documentation, and shall set forth the relief requested and any schedule within which the

disputc must be resolved for orderly implementation of the Consent Decree,
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a. The United States shall respond to Defendant’s motion within the time period
provided in the Local Rules of this Court, unless the parties stipulate otherwise, Defendant
may file a reply memorandum, to the extent permitted by the Local Rules or the Parties’
sﬁpuiatinn; as applicable.

b. In any dispute under this Paragrapﬁ, Défendant shall bear the burden of
demonstrating that its position clearly complies with and i‘urthers the objectives of this
Consent Decree aﬁd the Clean Air Act. The United States reserves the right to argue that its
position is reviewable only on the administrative record and must be upheld unless arbitrary
and capricious or otherwise not in accordance with law.

57.  Invokingdispute resolution procedures under this Section shall not extend, postpone,
ot affect in any way any obligation of Defendant under this Consent Decree, not directly in disputel,
unless the United States agrees, or the Court (upen timely application pursuant to this Section)
determines otherwise. Stipulated Penalties with respect to the disputed matter shall continue to
acerue from the first day of noncompliance, but payment shall be stayed pending resolution of the
dispute as provided in this Section, above. If Defcnda.ﬁt does not prevail on the disputed issue,
Stipulated Penalties shall be assessed and paid as provided in Section VIl (Stipulated Penalties).
To the extent that Defendant prevails on the disputed issue, it does not have to pay costs, penalties

or the interest that accrued during the dispute.
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X1, INFORMATION COLLECTION AND RETENTION
58. The United Stat;s and its representatives, including atlorneys. contractors, and
consultants, shall have the right df entry to any facility covered by this Consent Decree, at ail
reasonable times, upon presentation of credentials lo:

a.  monitor the progress of activities required under this Consent Decree;

b. verify ﬁy data or information submitted to the United States in accordance
with the terms of this Consent Decree, obtain samples a;nd, upon request, splits of any
samples taken by Defendant or its representative, cuntractors,l or consultants; -

< obtain documentary evidence, including photographs and similar data; and

d. assess Defendant’s compliance with this Consent Decree.

50.  Unlil three (3) years after the termination of this Consent Decree, Pefendant shall
retain, and shall instruct its contractors and agents to preserve, all non-identical copies of all records

and documents (including records or documents in electronic form) in its or its contractors” or

—
—_—

agents’ possession or mﬁﬁol, orthat come into its or its contractors’ or agents’ possession or contrel,
and that relate in any manner to Defendant’s performance of its ob]igaﬁnns under this Consent
Dccree. This record retention requirement shall apply regardlc_s.s of any corporate ot institutional
document-retention policy to the contrary. At any time during this record-retention period, the
United States may request copiés of any documents of records required to be maintained under thi‘s
Paragraph.

60. . At the conclusion of the document-retention period provided in the precedingl
Paragraph, Defendant shall notify the United States at least 90 days prior to the destruction of any

records or documents subject to the requirements of the preceding Paragraph, and', upon request by
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the United States, Defendant shall deliver any soch records or documents to. EPA. Defendant ma_;,:
asscrt that certain documents, records, or other information is privileged under the attormney-client
privilege or any other privilege recognized by federal law. If Defendant asserts such a privilege, it
shall provide the foltowing: (1) the title of the document, record, or information; (2) the date of the
document, record, ot information; {3) the name apd title of the author of the document, record, or
information; (4) the name and title of each addressee and recipient; (5) a description of the subject
of th.e ddcuxncnt, recofd, or informalion;.and (6) the privilege asserted by Defendant. However, no
documents, reports, ot other information created or generated pursuant to the requircments of this
Conéent Decree shall be withjzald on the grounds that they are privileged.

61.  This Consent Deeree in no way limits or affects any right of cntry and inspection, or

any right to obtain information, held by the United States pursuant to applicable federal or state laws,

regulations, or permits.

XII. FAILURE OF COMPLIANCE
62.  The United States does not, byits consent to the mtxjrof this Consent Decree, warrant
ar aver in any manner that Defendant’s compliance with any aspect of this Consent Decree will result
in compliance with provisions of Section 608 of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 767 lg, or implementing
regulations at 40 C,F‘R. Part 82, Subpart F. Notwitﬁstanding the United States’ review and approval
of any documents submitted to it by Defendant pursuant to this Consent Decree, Defendant shall

remain solely responsible for compliance with the terms of the Act and this Consent Dectee.
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XIII. EFFECT OF SETTLEMENT/RESERVATION OF RIGHTS
63.  This Consent Decree resolves the civil claims of the United States that Gieneral Iron
disposed of reﬁ‘igcrant—cnntaining appliances at the Facility in a manner which violated 40 C.E.R.
§§ £2.154 (a) and 82.156 (£), through the date of lodging of the Consent Decree.
64. 'i‘his Coﬁsent Decree shall not be construed to prevent or lim_it the rights of the United

States to obtain penalties or injunctive relief under the Act, or under other federal or state laws,

regulations, or permit conditions, except as expressly specified herein.

65.  Defendant is responsible for achieving and maintaining complete compliance with
all applicable Ifederal, State, and local laws, regulations, and permits; and Defendant’s cump]iaﬁce
with this Consent Decree -shall be no defense to any action commenced pursuant to said laws,
regulations, of permits. This Consent Decrée is not a permit, or a modification of any permit, under
any federal, State, or local laws or regulations.

66,  This Cclrnsmt Decree does not limit ot affect the rights of Defendant or of the United
States against any third parties, not party to this Consent Decree, nor does it limit the rights 6f third
parties, not party to this Cbnserllt'.[)ecree. against Defendant, except as otherwise provided by law.

67.  This Consent Decree shall not be construed to create rights in, or grant any cause of
action to, any third party not party to this Consent Decree.

68.  The United States reserves all legal and e;quitab]c remedies available to enforce the
provisioné of this Consent Decree, except as expressly stated herein. The United States further
reserves all legal and equitable remedies to address any imfninent and substéntial endangerment to
the public health, welfare, or the environment arising at, or posed by, Defendant’s Facility and

whether related to the violations addressed in this Consent Decree or otherwise.

24



Case 1:04-cv-06820 Document 36  Filed 08/22/2006 Page 28 of 57

XIv, COSTS
69.  The Parties shall bear their own costs of this action, including attorneys fees, except
that the United States shall be entitled to collect the costs (including attorneys fees) incurred in any
action necessary to collect any portion of the civil penalty or any Stipulatcd Penalties due but not

paid by Defendant.

XV. NOTICES
70,  Unless otherwise specified herein, whenever notifications, submissions, or

communications are required by this Consent Decree, they shall be made in writing and addressed

as follows.:

[0 the United States:

Chief, Environmental Enforcement Scction
Environment and Natural Resources Division
U.8. Department of Justice .

Box 7611 Ben Franklin Station

Washington, D.C. 20044-7611

Re: DOJI No. 90-5-2-1-07322

and

Jonathan C. Haile

Assistant United States Attorney
United States Attomney

Northern District of Illinois
Dirksen Federal Building

219 §. Dearborn Street, 5th Floor
Chicago, [linois 60604
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To EPA:

Air Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Branch
ATTN: Compliance Tracker

Air Enforcement Branch, AE-17] -

U5 EPA, Region V

77 West Jackson Boulevard

Chicago, Hlinoig 60604-3590

and

Thomas J. Kenney

Senior Atforney

Office of Regional Counsel (C-14J)
U8, EPA, Region 'V

77 West Jackson Boulevard
Chicago, Illinois 60604-3590

To Defendant:

Adam Labkon

General Iron Industries, Inc.
1909 North Clifton Avenue
Chicago, Illinois 60614

and
Stephen A. Swedlow
Swedlow & Associates
205 N. Michigan Ave.
Suite 1940
Chicago, Iilinois 60601
71.  Any Party may, by written notice to the other Parties, change its designated natice
recipient or notice address provided above.

72.  Notices submitted pursuant to this Section shall be deemed submitied upon mailing,

unless otherwise provided in this Consent Decree or by mutual agreement of the Parties in writing.
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XVIL. EFFECTIVE DATE
73, The Effective Date of this Consent Decrce shall be the date upon which this Consent

Decree is entered by the Court.

XVII. RETENTION OF JURISDICTION
74.  The Court shall retain jurisdiction of this case untiI.termination of this Consent
Decree, for the purpose of eriabling any nf the Parties to apply to the Court for such further order,
direction, or relief as may be necessary or appropriate for the construction or modification of this
‘Cnnsent Decree, or to effectuate or enforce compliance with its terms, or to resalve disputes in

accordance with Section X of this Decree (Dispute Resolution).

XVIIL. MODIFICATION
75.  Subject to the Court’s inherent power under the Federal Rules to alter or émend
judgments, the terms of this Consent Decree may be modified only by a subséquent written
agreement signéd by all the Parties. Where the meodification constitufcs a material change to any

term of this Dceree, it shall be effective only upon approval by the Court.

XIX. TERMINATION
76, After Defendant has satisfactorily complied with all requirements of this Consent
Decree, including those relating to the SEPs required by Section VI, and has paid the civil penalty

and any accrued Stipulated Penalties as required by this Consent Decree, Defendant may serve upon
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the United States a Request for Termination, stating that Defendant has satisfied those
requirements, together with all necessary supporting documentation.

77.  Following racefpt by the United States of Defendant's Request {for Termination, the
Parties shall confer informally concerning the Request and any disagreement that the Parties may
have as to whether Defendant has satisfactorily complied with the requirements for termination of
this Consent Decree. If the United States agrees that the Decree may be terminated, the Parties
shall submit, for the Court's approval, 4 joint stipulation terminating the Decree.

78. If the United States does not agree that the Decree may be terminated, Defendant
may invoke Dispute Resolution under Section X of this Decree. However, Defendant shall not sesk

judicial resolution of any dispute, under Section X, until sixty days after service of its Request for

Termination.

| XX. SIGNATORIES/SERVICE
79.  Eachundersigned representative of Defendant, and the Assistant Attorney General
for the Environment and Natural Resources Division of thé Department of Justice {or her delegate)
certifies that he or she is fully authorized to enter into the terms and conditions of this Consent
Decree and to execute and legally bind the Party he or she represents to this document.
80.  ThisConsent Decree may be signed in counterparts, and such counterpart signaturc
pages shall be given full force and effect. .

" 81.  Defendant agrees not to oppose entry of this Consent Decree by the Court or to
chatlenge any provision of the Decree, unless the United States has notified Defendant in writing
that it no longer supports entry of the Decree.

82, Defendant agrees to accept service of process by mail with respect to all matters

arising under or relating to this Consent Decree and to waive the formal service requirements set
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forth in Rule 4 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and any applicable Local Rules of this

Court including, but not limited to, service of a summons.

XXL INTEGRATION/APPENDICES
83.  This Consent Decree constitutes the final, complete, and exclusive agreement and
understanding among the Parties with respect to the settlement embodied in the Decree and
supersedes all prior agreements and imderstandings, whether oral or written. No other document,
nor any repregentation, inducement, agreement, pnderstanding, or promise, constitutes any part of
this Dectee or the settlement it represents, nor shall it be used in construing the terms of this

Decree.

XXII FINAL JUDGMENT
84. Upon appraval and entry of this Consent Decree by the Court, this Conscnt Decree

gshall constitute a final judgment between the United States and Defendant.
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AUG 2 2 2006

Dated and entered this day.of

Tddge Joan Lefkow
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
Northern District of Ilinois

AUG 2 2 2008
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Through their undersigned representatives, the Parties agree and conscnt to cntry of the foregoing
Consent Decree 1n United States of America v. General Iron Iudustres, Ine.;

SUE ELLEN WOOLDRIDGE

Assistanl Attomey (General

Environment and Natural Resources
Division

TInited States Departrment of Justice

/

o

W, BE{(IAMH\I FISHEROW

Deputy Scetion Chief

Envirofiment and Natural Resources
Division

United States Department of Justice

PATRICK J. FITZGERALD

Ssistant United States Attormey
Northemn District of [llinois
Dirksen Federal Building
219 5, Dearbom Street, 5th Floor
Chicago, Illinois 60604

FOR PLAINTIEF UNITED 5TATES OF AMERICA:

Diate: %‘;/( :Ag

Date: 5//;7’ 286
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~ Through their undersigned representatives, the Parties agree and consent to entry of the
foregoing Consent Decree in United States of America v. General Iron Industries, Inc.:

Date: 44é l

| Afting 4 egional Administrator
Region V

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

7/28 06

Date:

THOMAS I KE

Associate Regional Counsel

U.5. Environimental Protection Agency
Region V '

77 West Jackson Boulevard (C-141)
Chicago, hnois 60604
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Through their undersigned representatives, the Parties agree and consent to entry of the foregoing

Consent Decree in United States of America v. General Iron Industries, Inc.:

FOR DEFENDANT, General Iron Industries, Inc.:

Mﬁmm\d\%\m ‘ Date: i , 2 l’.lﬂ)k;

[NAME, TITLE] 7 Plets
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APPENDICES
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CONSENT AGREEMENT APPFENDIX A
IESEL RETR TMENTAL ENVIRONMENT OJECT

L. The General Iron Retrofit SEP (“Retrofit SEP”) involves reducing particulate matter
and other harmful air pollutants from diesel engine exhaust by retrofitting diesel oxidation catalyst
devices onto City of Chicago diesel vehicles to minimize the emissions from these vehicles. These
emissions contribute to acid rain, ground-level ozone and reduced visibility. The vehicles and
equipment covered by the Retrofit SEP are currently operated and maintained by the City of
Chicago Department of Fleet Management. The Retroﬁt SEP is designed to bencfit the populations
within the general geographic arca in which the General Iron facility is located.

2. General Iron will retrofit approximately 250 City of Chicago diesel vehicles with
diese! oxidation catalysts manufactured by the International Truck and Engine Corporation as
described in the attached brochure. The effectiveness of these catalysts has been verified byEPA.
The vehicles to be retrofitted will be chosen from amonyg the vehicles listed in Table 1 attached
hereto. Table I provides information about the vehicle types and estimated emission reductions.

Each of these retrofits is estimated to cost approximately $1,260.

3. Gieneral Iron shall spend a total of $315,000 to implement the Retrofit SEP. Costs
incurred for internal General Iron personnel (or entities in which General Iron has a financial
interest) in t}.xe development and oversight of the SEP may not be credited against the $315,000
spending requirement.

4. For purposes of this SEP, “satisfactory completion™ shall mean that General Iron
demonstrates ﬁll involvernentin the SEP and retrofits at least 200 vehicles with International diesel

oxidation catalysts, or substitute device approved in writing by EPA. The retrofit SEP must be
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completed within one year from the Effective Date of the Consent Decree, unless the time is

extended by EPA’s written agreement,
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International Truck & Engine Corporation
Green Diesel Technology ¥ by International ®

Diesel Particulate Filter (DPF)

Internatianak® diasel particuiate fiters utilize te latest avARTamenls [ aizsion
coniral techrology from Engeifiard, 2 world (eadar 1 amisslon tachaoiogy.

Reirafit Miars provide:

« 70-08% reduciion In perticutate matter (PR} and visible smoke; depending on fuel quality
v TO-98% reduction in CO and HG

v Reduced odor

¢ Reducad molse

Dissed pariiculate fitars from Internatfonsf are paisive systems
and gllow oxidation of FM at narmal operating temparallires.

Reneilts include: .
u Fuel suifur talerasce. Althaugh wae require the vse of ultra low gulfur fued (15ppin), occasional yse of

higher suifur fuel in smegency sfivdtions wifl not damage the sysfem or stop tha vehi [-11:8

n Essy tieaning and malpligmance. Wa recommend <leaning and visual Inspeciion onge avery {12
[walve montis or every 60,000 miles/ 100,000 kilomitars. Cerlain appifcatfons may reguire more
frequenl service, Intermatiotial Sysiems Includs a prassurs moniter sansar, wiich will indicate the
naed for cieaning. Only removal of the non-texic ash I& required to clean the fiter.

« No additional anergy devicas. DPF systeins ara desigaed to bt passive apatams ahd regenerate
under nornal vehicle opemting conditions, '

w Effactive under most driving conditions. Tdifng doasx mot subemntially affert tha performance of the
DPE. During Idling, very fita PR Is produced, and the FM thet Is produced Is primarily ol and fusd that
the OFF easlly eifimingles. ‘

x Adaplabifity. The RPF I3 avallable for yse an most dlesel buses and medfum Lucks with wlactronic

-y -

Intermational® dicsel oxidation catalyst is OEM enginesred and built
Retrofft catalysf gravicder

o 20:30% reductorn In particulute matter (PM)

» up fo 50% reduction tn carben monexlde (GO} and hydrocerbens (HG}

w Harmiul hydrocarbang (HE) are 820 radfuced up ta 50%

Racommanded for mechanfcal engime vahicles thal do not cqualify for the DPF,

Serefils includa;
= Proven low cost ermfasians reductian tachnalogy

& Enay tq Install and requires no maiptanance afer instailation.

w The mufflar and caalyst are comblned fo provite sound sitenuation and
emiasion reduction capabliiies.

Green Diesel Technology ™ by Internatfonal ® retrofit products have been Verified by The Federal EPA aud eligible
for Federal and most state and local grant funding. Manufacnared with Stainless Steel marerials for diurabilicy and
. corTasion resistance, Meeis U.S. Faderal op-highway vehicle noise regulations.
Adeditionad infarmeotion, can be found on the EFA websire ai unviv e gov.

FOR BUSINESS AND THE ENVIRONMENT

Today in the L5, aimosc all heavy trusks, medium trucks und buset are powered by dicsel. And ir's not just bacayss of diesel's unsurpassed power and performance.
Slere aie & Feww more resaons: Croen Diorel Techmolony® vehiclss developed by Intomational asd 1C Corporation, tntemational’s whally-owned affilive, ar the wave
of the future, Using the breakihrough advamtages of advanced distet engine techoetogy. particulawe flrers wid wira-tow-solfur diesel el some eigines develoged by
{rremational have already been cenified as meering the U5, Envirotmental Protection Agency’s 2007 nandards far particulare moner (#M) 2nd kydrecybons (HE,

and there's cven MOrE improvement on the way. Imemational’s wetrofit hils ere another pant afthe erission improveraent line bf produses affered drmugh all

suthorized ntemotional end [ bus dealer locations, Yoo ean rest assured alk federaf guidclings. will be mct — and that we' [ canrinue provide you with clean ucks

and buses thes move you ahead, en the road sl In your business.
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[
1 810149 .
2 810148
3 810147
4 510146
5 510145
8 510144
7 510143
B S10142
g 510141

10 510140
11 510139
12 510138
13 510137
14 510136
15 S10135
16 310124
17 810133
18 510132
18 §10131
20 510130
21 810128
22 510128
23 510127
24 510126
25 510125
28 510124
27 310123
|20 510122
26 5310121
30 510818
31 3410817
3z 810818
33 510815
34 510814
35 510813
38 510812
37 510811
38 510810

Document 36  Filed 08/22/2006

TABLE 1

41262006

62

2005 AUTOCAR EXPEDITOR
2005 AUTOCAR EXPEDITOR
2005 AUTOCAR EXPEDITOR
2005 AUTOCAR EXPEDITOR
2005 AUTOCAR EXPEDITOR
2005 AUTOCAR EXPEDITOR
2005 AUTOCAR EXPEDITOR
2005 AUTOCAR EXPEDITOR
2005 AUTOCAR EXPEDITOR
2005 AUTOCAR EXPEDITOR
2005 AUTOCAR EXPEDITOR
2005 AUTOCAR EXPEDITOR
2005 AUTQCAR EXPEDITOR
2005 AUTOCAR EXPEDITOR
2005 AUTOQCAR EXPEDITOR
2005 AUTOCAR EXPEDITOR
2005 AUTOCAR EXPEDITOR
2005 AUTOCAR EXFPEDRITOR
2005 AUTOCAR EXPEDITOR
2005 AUTOCAR EXPEDITOR
2005 AUTOCAR EXPEDITOR
2005 AUTOCAR EXPEDITOR
2006 AUTOCAR EXPEDITOR
2005 AUTOCAR EXPEDITOR
2005 AUTOCAR EXPEDITOR
2005 AUTOCAR EXPEDITOR
2005 AUTOCAR EXPEDITOR
2005 AUTOCAR EXPEDITOR
2001 VOLVO XPEDITOR
2001 vOoLVO XPEDITOR
2001 VOLVO XPEDITOR
2001 VOLVO XPEDITOR
2001 VOLVO XPEDITOR
2001 VOLVO XPEDITOR
2001 VOLVO XPEDITOR
2001 VOLVO XPEDITOR
2001 VOLVQ XPEDITOR

.39
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39 510809
40 510808
41 510807
42 810806
43 510805
44 510804
45 510803
46 510802
47 810801
48 510800
49 510789
50 310788
51 810787
52 B10785
53 510785
54 510784
55 S10783
58 510782
57 510781
58 310780
- 59 510779
&0 810778
61 810777
62 510776
83 S10775
g4 510774
85 510773
66 510772
67 810771
65 510770
69 510768
70 510768
71 8510767
72 510766
74 510765
74 510764
75 510763
76 310762
77 S10781
78 810760
19 510756
B0 §10758
a1 510757
B2 510756
B3 510755
B4 510754
85 510753
86 510752
87 510751
83 510750
89 510749
90 510748

TABLE 1

2001 VOLVO XPEDITOR
2001 VOLVQ XPEDRITOR
2001 VOLVO XPEDITOR
2001 vOLVO XPEDITOR
2001 vOLVO XFEDITOR -
2001 vOLVO XPEDITOR
2001 VOLVO XFEDITOR
2001 VOLVO XPERITOR
2001 VOLVO XPEDITOR
2001 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1999 VOLVO XPEDNTOR
1699 VOLVO XFEDITOR
1698 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1869 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1999 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1988 VOLVO XPEDITOR
19599 VOLVO XPEDITOR -
1999 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1988 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1999 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1992 vOLVO XFEDITOR
1899 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1999 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1698 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1888 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1698 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1529 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1999 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1999 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1998 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1998 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1698 VOLVO APEDITOR
1998 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1898 VOLVO XPEDITOR

1898 VOLVO XPEDITOR

1998 VOLVO XPEDITOR
18999 VOLVO XPEDITOR
19988 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1898 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1498 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1499 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1099 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1099 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1998 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1599 VOLVO XPERITOR
1599 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1993 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1499 VOLVC XPEDITCOR
1599 VOLVC XPEDITOR
1998 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1989 VOLVC XPEDITOR
1989 VOLVQ XPEDITOR
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91 810747
92 510746
03 810745
94 510744
95 510743
96 510742
97 810741
g8 510740
90 510739
100 510738
101 510737
102 810736
103 510735
104 510734
105 §10733
106 510732
107 510731
108 810730
108 510729
110 510728
111 810727
112 310726
113 510725
114 510854
115 510853
116 510652
117 S10651
118 510650
119 310849
120 S10648
121 590647
122 510648
123 510845
124 10644
125 S10643
126 510642
127 510641
128 510640
129 510839
130 510638
131 810837
132 $10636
133 510635
134 510634
135 510633
136 510632
137 510631
138 S10630
135 810629
140 510628
141 810627
142 510826

TABLE 1

1989 VOLVO XPERQITOR
1898 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1988 VOLVO XPERITOR
1889 VOLVO XPEDRITOR
1999 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1899 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1999 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1988 VOLVO XPEQITOR
19688 VOLVOQ XPEDITOR
1988 VOLVO XPERITOR
18989 vOLVO XPEDITOR
1969 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1999 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1969 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1889 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1899 VOLVO XPERITOR
1996 VOLVO XPERITOR
1809 vOLVO XPERITOR
1888 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1888 VOLVQ XPEDITOR
1989 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1399 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1989 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1997 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1897 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1897 VOLVQ XPEDITOR
1897 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1897 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1887 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1897 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1597 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1997 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1997 VOLVO XFEDITCR
1987 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1987 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1887 VOLVC XPEDRITOR
1997 VOLVQ XPEDITOR
1947 VOLVQ XPEDITOR
1997 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1997 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1997 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1847 VOLVC XPEDITOR
1997 VOLVO XFEDITOR,
1897 VOLVO XPERITOR
1967 VOLVQ XPEDITOR
1897 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1987 VOLVO XFERITOR
1997 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1987 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1997 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1697 VOLVO XPECATOR
1897 VOLVQ XPEDITOR
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143 510625
144 510622
145 510621
146 510620
147 510619
148 510618
149 510817
150 5106186

151 510615

152 S10614
153 510613
154 S10812
155 §10611
158 S10810
157 $106089
158 510608
158 S10607
160 $10606
161 S10605
162 510604
163 S10603
164 510602
165 S10601
168 S10600
167 S10678
168 S10578
169 $10577
170 S10576
171 §10575
172 $10574
173 $10573
174 510572
175 $10574
176 510560
177 510558
178 810857
179 $10559
180 510556
181 510555
182 S10554
183 510553

- 184 510652

185 510551
186 510580
187 310649
188 510548

Document 36

TABLE 1

1937 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1996 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1956 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1986 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1996 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1896 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1996 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1996 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1956 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1988 VOLVQ XPEDITOR
1996 VOLVQ XPEDITOR
1986 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1988 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1996 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1598 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1896 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1986 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1996 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1956 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1968 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1966 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1866 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1998 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1808 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1996 VOLVO XPEDITOR
14866 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1896 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1996 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1896 VOLVO XFEDITOR
1996 VOLVO XPEDITCOR
1996 VOLVC XPEDITOR
1994 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1998 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1996 VOLVQ XPEDITOR
1996 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1996 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1995 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1985 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1995 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1995 VOLVO XPEDITOR

1985 VOLVO XPEDITOR

1995 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1995 VOLVO XPEDITOR,
1995 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1098 VOLVO XPEDITOR
1885 VOLVC XPEDITOR
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Document 36

Filed 08/22/2006

TABLE ]

REFUSE TRUCK RETROFITS - GENERAL IRON

20 CUBIC YARD REFUSE TRUGCKS
18 CUBIC YARD REFUSE TRUGKS

REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
-REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRLUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFLISE COMPACTCR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUGK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUGCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR [LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRLUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR |LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFLSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRLICK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUBE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD

3RB
3RE

3RB
3RB
IRB
3IRA
3RB
3RB
IRB
3RB
3RB
3RB
IRB
IRB
3RB
3RB
IRB
3RB
3RB
3RB
3RA
3RB
3IRB
3RE
IRB
IRB
aRB
3RE
IRE
3RB
3RB
3RB
3RB
IRE
3RB
3RB
3RB
3RE
3RB
3RB

S5&5 BUR OF SANITATION
545 BUR OF SANITATION

S&5 BUR OF SANITATION
S&5 BUR OF SANITATION
$&S BUR OF SANITATION
S&5 BUR OF SANITATION
$&S BUR OF SANITATION
5&8 BUR OF SANITATION
S&5 BUR OF SANITATION
5&S5 BUR OF SANITATION
S&S BUR OF SANITATION
$48 BUR OF SANITATION
S&S5 BUR OF SANITATION
5485 BUR OF SANITATION
S&5 BUR OF SANITATION
S85 BUR OF SANITATION
S&8 BUR OF SANITATION
S&45 BUR OF SANITATION
S&5 BUR OF SANITATION
$88 BUR OF SANITATION
585 BUR OF SANITATION
5835 BUR OF SANITATION
48 BUR OF SANITATION
S&5 BUR OF SANITATION
S5&5 BUR OF SANITATION
585 BUR OF SANITATION
S&S5 BUR OF SANITATICN
S&S BUR OF SANITATION
5&5 BUR OF SANITATION
545 BUR OF SANITATION
S&8 BUR QF SANITATION
5885 BUR OF SANITATION
S48 BUR OF SBANITATION
S&5 BUR OF SANITATION
5&5 BUR OF SANITATION
S&5 BUR OF SANITATION
B85 BUR OF SANITATION
585 BUR QF SANITATION
5453 BUR QUF SANITATION
$&S5 BUR OF SANITATION
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REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUIE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOALD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD

REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD |

BEFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAR
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPAGCTOR TRUCK, REAR LDAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD

REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD

REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFLUISE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRLUICK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUGK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUJSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTCOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
~ REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD

REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFLUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR L.OAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD

TABLE 1

JRB
IRB
JRB
JRE
IRB
3RAB
3RB
SR8
3IRB
IRE
3RB
3RB
3RAE
3RB
3RE
3RB
3RB

" 3RB

3RB
3RB
3RB
3RA
3RB
3RB
3RB
3RB
3RB
3RB
3RB
3RB
3RB
3RB
3RE
3RE

' 3RB

3RB
3RB
3RB
3RB
3rRB
3RB
ARB
arRB
3RB
3RB
3RB
3RE
IR
arRB
3ARB
3RB
aRB

555 BUR OF SANITATION
SRS BUR OF SANITATION
585 BUR OF SANITATION
S&5 BUR OF SANITATION
$&5 BUR OF SANITATION
S&5 BUR OF SANITATION
545 BUR OF SANITATION
S&8 BUR OF SANITATION
585 BUR OF SANITATION
545 BUR OF SANITATION
5&5 BUR OF SANITATION
585 BUR OF SANITATION
S$&5 BUR OF SANITATION
S5&5 BLIR OF SANITATION
S5&8 BUR OF SANITATION
545 BUR OF SANITATION
545 BUR OF SANITATION
S&S BUR OF SANITATION
$&5 BUR OF SANITATION
S&S BUR OF SANITATION
8&5 BUR OF SANITATION
5&S BUR OF SANITATION
5458 BUR OF SANITATION
S&5 BUR OF SANITATION
545 BUR OF SANITATION
S48 BUR OF SANITATION
245 BUR OF SANITATION
545 BUR OF SANITATION
545 BUR OF SANITATION
$&S BUR OF SANITATION
S&%5 BUR OF SANITATION
545 BUR OF SANITATION
S&5 BUR OF SANITATION
S85 BUR OF SANITATION
S83 BUR OF SANITATION
545 BUR OF SANITATION
5&5 BUR OF SANITATION
5&5 BUR OF SANITATION
585 BUR QF SANITATION
585 BUR OF SANITATION
S83 BUR OF SANITATION
5438 BUR DF SANITATION
S&S BUR OF SANITATION
5435 BUR OF SANITATION
S5&5 BUR OF SANITATION
S&S BUR OF SANITATION
S83 BUR OF SANITATION
S5&5 BUR OF SANITATION
S&S BUR OF SANITATION
5&5 BUR OF SANITATION
5&5 BUR OF SANITATION
585 BUR OF SANITATION
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TABLE 1

REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3RB SA5BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD 3RB S&S BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3RB 545 BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REARLQAD  3RB 5&5 BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3RB 545 BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REARLOAD  3RB S&% BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMFACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3RB 5&8 BUR OF SANITATION
REFLSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3RB S&S BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3RB S84S5 BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3RB S&S5 BUR OF SANITATION
. REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3REB 5&S BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3RB S&S BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3RB 5&5 BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3RB 845 BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REARLCAD  3RE &8 BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REARLOAD  3RB 3&S BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REARLOAD  3RE S4S BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3RB S&S BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD 3RB S&S BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3RB S&85 BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3RB 385 BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD . 3RB S&5 BUR OF SANITATION
REFLSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3RB 5&5 BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3RB S&S5 BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3RB S&5 BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3RB 5&5 BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3RB 545 BLIR OF SANITATION
REFLUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REARLOAD  3RB 545 BUR OF SANITATIOM
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3RB S5&5 BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REARLOAD 3RB 5&S BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REARLOAD 3RBE 5&S BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REARLOAD 3RB 385 BUR OF SANITATION -
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3RB 545 BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3RB 3848 BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD 3RB $&S BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3RB 5&S BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD 3RB 343 BUR QF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD 3RB 5345 BUR QF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD 3RB 5&35 BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD 3RB £&S BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3RB 845 BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3RB 545 BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3FRE S&3 BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3RB S&5 BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTCOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3RB S&5 BLR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3RB 545 BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REARLOAD 3REB S48 BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUGHK, REAR LOAD - 3RB S&S BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  2RB S&S BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3REB 5&5 BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3RB S5&3 BUR OF SANITATION
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD  3IRB 545 BUR OF SANITATION |
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REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPAGCTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPAGTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR 1 OAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD

REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REARLOAD

REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFLISE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
REFUSE COMPACTOR TRUCK, REAR LOAD
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TABLE 1

3RB
3RB
3RB
3RB
3RB
3RB
3RB
3RB
3RB
3RB
3RB
3RB
3RB
3RB
JRB
3RB
3JRB
3IRB
3RB
3RB
3RB
3RB
3RB
3rR8
3RB
3RB
3RB
3RB
3rRB
3RE
3IRB
iRB
IRB
3RB
IRB
3RB
3RE
JRB
3RB
3RB
J3RB
3RB
3RB
IRB
IRB
aRB

585 BUR OF SANITATION
543 BUR OF BANITATION
B5&S5 BUR OF SANITATION
885 BUR OF SANITATION
8543 8UR OF SANITATICN
583 BUR OF SANITATION
523 BUR OF SANITATION
585 pUR OF SANITATION
S48 BUR OF SANITATION
585 BUR OF BANITATION
584 BUR OF SANITATION
E&5 BUR OF SANITATION
58S BUR OF SANITATION
585 BUR OF SANITATION
845 BUR OF SANITATION
S&S BUR OF SANITATION

558 BUR OF SANITATION -

S8S BUR OF SANITATION
548 BUR OF SANITATION
885 BUR OF SANITATION
SA&5 BUR QF SANITATION
S5&5 BUR OF SANITATION
S45 BUR OF SANITATION
345 BUR OF SANITATION
S5 BUR OF SANITATION
SE5 BUR OF SANITATION
S5&5 BUR OF SANITATION
5E5 BUR OF SANITATION
S&5 BUR OF SANITATION
S5&5 BUR OF SANITATION
S&S BLUR OF SANITATION
B&3 BUR OF SANITATION
S5&S5 BUR OF SANITATION
S&S BUR OF SANITATION
585 BUR OF SANITATION
585 AUR OF SANITATION
S&5 BUR OF SANITATION
S5&5 BUR OF SANITATION
S4&S BUR OF SANITATION
545 BUR OF SANITATION
545 BUR OF SANITATION
845 BUR OF SANITATION
555 BUR OF SANITATION
5&S BUR OF SANITATION
S5&3 BUR OF SANITATION
545 BUR OF SANITATION
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TABLE 2

VI APEDITCR iy
6] CAR DVER ENGING W GREEH 3R ¥ 0% {0 70% | LR TD 30% | UP TO 0%
CESeL TRUCK | e OXIDATICH L
CHARLUS WITH CATALYET

]y ERRATIONAL

THAIT K
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CONSENT AGREEMENT APPENDIX B
GAS-POWE WNMOWER BUY-BACK PRO M

1. Within five years of the Effective Date of the Consent Decree, Defendant shall
perform a SEP which will consist of participating in a series of gas-powered Jawnmower buy-back
events. Ceneral Iron shall achieve a total combined cash-worth equivalency credit and SEP credit
of $90,000 for its participatidn in these events. Gas-powered lawnmowers contribute to regional
ozone problems (smog) by emitting pollutants including Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) and
nitrogen oxides. The gas powered lawn-mowers will be surrendered and destroyed in exchange for
discounts on the purchase of electric, battery or non-motorized la;.avnmowers, thercby improving air
quality.

2. General Iron will coordinate and assist the Metropolitan Mayor’s Caucus and Clean
Air Counts in planning and conducting lawnmower buy-back events in Cook County. These cvents
will take place af times to be determined by the Metropolitan Mayor’s Caucus based on anticipated
response. The lawnmower buy-back events will encourage heuschulds to tradc-in their gas-powerad
lawnmower and receive a rebate certificate (to be provided through funding available to the
Metropolitan Mayors’ Caucus) on the purchase of an electric, battery or non-motornized lawnmower.
The amount of the rebate certificate to be offered at each buy-back event shall be determined by the
Metropolitan Mayors® Caucus,

-3 (enieral Iron shall receive a $3,000 cash-worth equivalent SEP credit for zach
lawnmower buy-back event in which it participates for providing the services enumerated in this
paragraph. General Iron’s obligation for its cash worth equivalent SEP credit are the following:

provision for use and operation of a skid steer that will be equipped with a grapple or bucket to load
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the lawn care products into the roll off boxes, mobilization of the equipment to and from the
lawnmower buyback event, provision for roll-off boxes sufficient for the volume of lawnmowers
collected at the event, trucking services for delivery, spotting and removal of the roll-off boxes and
disposal of the recycled gas-powered lawnmowers, and full inspection and any r.equired maintenance
of all equipment to be used at the event. In addition to (his $3,000 cash worth equivalent credit,
(General Irqn will receive SEP credit for the following out—of-pocket expenditures related to the
lammmc'owcr‘buy-back events: cost of rcdeeand rebate certificates, advertising and promotional
costs, all reimbursable municipal costs and hazardous waste disposal costs.

4 For purposes of this SEP, “satisfactory completion” shall mean that General [ron
demonstrates full involvement in the SEP as described in this appendix and as documented in the
SEP Coﬁlpletion Report and coordinates and assists the Metropolitan Mayor’s Cancus and Clean
- Air Counts in conducting lawnmower buy-back event plarming and execution at the times directed
by the Metropolitan Mayor’s Caucus. |

5. If for any reason, Defendant has achieved less than $90,000 in combined cash-worth
equivalent SEP credit and SEP credit for cvent—rela_ted EXpenses within five years of the Effective
Date of this Consent Decree, General Iron shall pay the balangc of the uncredited amount in cash
in accordance with the payment requirements set forth in paragraph 37d of the Consent Decree.

This payment shall be made within thirty days of the completion deadline.
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CONSENT AGREEMENT APPENDRIX C

GREEN ROOF SUPPLEMENTAL ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECT

1. The General Iron Gfeen Roof Supplemental Environmental Project (“Green Roof
SEP™) involves installing and assembling an extens.ive Green Roof system on top of the -
conventional roof for the General lron facility located at 1909 North Clifton Avenue, Chicago,
llinois 60614. The Green Roof SEP is designed to: improve water quality by managing storm water
discharge from the roof, mitigate the urban heat island effect, and imprbvc air quality through the
reduction of smog-forming chem icﬁls such as ground icvcllozonﬂ, particulatcs, Ié.nd nitrous oxides
(as well as carbon dioxide).

2. The Green Roof SEP will involve the assembly and installation of an extensive Green
Roof system over at least 1,750 square feet of the existing conventional roof on the facility located
at 1909 North Clifton Avenue, Chicago, Illinois 60614. “Extenisive” means that the Green Roof
system requires minimal maintenance and periodic fertilization. The components of this extensive
Green Rouf assembly include: edge restraints, a root barrier, a drainage coreﬁnoisture retention
system, separation fabric and growing media at a two inch depth. Into this assembly will be placed
3,000 plugs of various root plants.

3. General Tron or its contractor shall, no later thaﬁ sixty days fromn the Effective Date
of this Consent Decree, apply for all permits required to construct the extensive Green Roof
assembly described herein. The permit application will include, as necessary, structural engineering

caleulations sufficient to demonstrate that the subject facility can support the Green Roof agsembly.

4, General Iron shall ensure that all contractor costs related to the SEP are reasonable

and necessary for the satisfactory completion of the SEP. Costs incurred for internal General Iron
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personnel (or entities in which General 'Iron has a financial interest) in the development and
oversight of the SEP may not be credited against the $35,000 spending requirement.

3. General Iron or its contractor shall complete the assembly and installation of the
éxtansiva Green Roof system no later than one year from the Effective Date of the Consent Decree.

6. For purposes of this SEP, “satisfactory completion™ shéll mean that General Iron has
successfully installed an extensive Green Roof assecmbly cov_ering at least 1,750 square feet of the |
conventional roofon the facility located at 1909 North Cliﬂﬁn Avenue, Chicago, [llinois 60614, and
maintained it for a period of five years.

7. If for any reason General Iron spends less than the full $35,000, General Iron shall
pay the balance in accordance with the payment requirements set forth in pare_tgraph 37. This

payment shall be made within 30 days of the completion deadline in paragraph 5, ahove.
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" CONSENT AGREEMENT APPENDIX D

SUPPLEMENTAL ENVIRO INTAL PROJE

1. The General Iron Natural Landscaping and River Restoration Supplemental
Environmental Project (“Nalural Landscaping SEP™) involves the restoration, cleanup and re-
vegetati;n of the river edge property along the North Branch of the Chicago River at the following
locations: (1) 1441 North Magnolia, Chicago, Ilkinois 60602 (“Magnolia™) and/or (2) 1066 West
North Avenue, Chicago, [llinois 60622 (“North Avenue™). The Natoral Landscaping SEP 13
designed to benefit the populations within thé general geographic area in wﬁich the General Iron
facility is loc.atccl by reducing emissions of smog, hydrocarbons and carbon monoxide created by
the landscaping maintenance cquiprﬁent required for traditional turf grass. This Natural,
Landscaping SEP will also contribute to the reduction of the number of Qzone Alert days in
Chicago, improve regional air quality, prevent land erosion, reduce the Greenhouss Effect and help
combat global climate change by removing carbon dioxide from the atmosphere.

2. The Natural Landscaping SEP will involve the landscaping (as described herein) of
at least a combined 450 linear foet measured along the edge of the Chicago River at Magnolia and/or
North Avenue and a total landscaped area of at least 10,000 square feet along the river edge.
Gieneral Iron shall spend at least $310,000 on the Natural Landscaping SEP.

3 The Natural Landscaping SEP will include the cleaning of debris and garbage from
along the edg,e. of the Chicago River at Magnolia and/or North Avenue. Dead trees and branchgs

“will be removed and trees pruned (or removed) as necessary. The River’s edge will be prepared to

the extent required to allow for the installation of a new retention wall (as limited herein) for the
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purpose‘of changing the grade through addition of topsoil to enable the river edge property to
sustain the contemplated landscaping described herein.

14, For the Natural Landscaping SEP, no muré than $100,000 may be credited as
eligible SEP costs for the installation of retention wall at the river edge at Magnolia and only for
areas in which natural landscaping is installed at the river edge, However, General Iron is not
required to install a retention wall for purposes of this SEP.

5. New trees and saplings will be planted to re-vegetate the area along the Chicago
River at Magnolia and/or North Avenue. Species such as Marmo Maple, Bald Cypress, Accoclade
Elm will be underptanted with Thomless Cockspur Hawthorn, Iroquois Beauty Chokeberry, Nearly
Wild Rose, Miss Kim Lilac, Ralph Senior Viburnum, Golden Glory Dogwood, Chinese Lilac and
Double Knockout Rose.

6. Perennials, grasses and seeding will inblude Little Spire Russian Sage, Black-Eyed
Susan, Prairie Drop Seed with Alium and Liatris, and Short Grass Prairie Seed.
| 7. An irrigation systém, including but not limited to supplemental waterline(s) to the
planted and landscaped areas, will be installed to assist in the establishment of the landscaped
areas. The waterlines will also be capable of providing supplemental water during periods of
prolonged drought. '

8. On or before 790 days after the entry of the Consent Decree, General Iron shall
complete the installation of the natural landscaping at Magnolia and/or North Avenue.

9. For purposes of this Natural Landscaping SEP, "satisfactory completion” shallmean -
that General Iron has (1) restored and re-vegetated at least 450 linear fect of river edge property

as described herein and at least 10,000 square feet of landscaping along the North Branch of the
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Chicago River at North Avenue and Magnolia conbined; (2) if necessary, rebuilt the river edge
property; and (3) maintained the naturzl landscaping and its irrigation system for a period of five
years after the Effective Date of this Consent Decree by the Court.

10.  General Iron shall ensure that all contracter costs related to the SEP are reasonable

and necessary for the satisfactory completion of the SEP. Costs incurred for internal Geﬁcral Iron

 personnel (or by entities in which General Iron has a financial interest) in the development and
6versight o.f' the SEP may not be credited against the $310,000 spending requirement.

11, If for any reason General Iron spends less than the full $310,000, General Iron shall

~ pay the balance in accordance with the payment requirements set forth in paragraph 37. Thm

payment shall be made within 30 days of the completion deadline in paragraph 8, above.
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